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Chartered Accountants
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Gurugram — 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including
othcr comprehensive loss), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows (or the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compuny us ut 31 March 2021, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)
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Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors cither intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud  or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of

Directors. A
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continuc as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures arc
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “*Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 202
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

A
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited on the
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)
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f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating cffcctiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

Avouah Auark

Ankush Goel
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 ICAT UDIN: 21505121AAAABAG878
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Minda Storage
Batteries Private Limited (“Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in our report of even date)
Page | of 3

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ report to the members of
Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited (*the Company’) on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021, we report the following:

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets (property, plant and equipment).

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a
phased manner over a period of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the fixed assets (property, plant and equipment) has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deed of the immovable property as disclosed in Note
4a on fixed assets (property, plant and equipment) to the financial statements is yet to be
transferred in the name of the Company which is presently in the name of Minda Industries
Limited, Holding Company.

(i1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, have been physically
verified by the management subsequent to the year end (refer note 9). In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature
of its business. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared
to book records were not material.

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
required under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or made any investments
or provided any guarantee, or security covered under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

K
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Minda Storage
Batteries Private Limited (“Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in our report of even date)
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(vi)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government, the maintenance of cost records has been prescribed
under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of such records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Goods and Services Tax (*GST’), Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value
added tax and other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, have been regular in
depositing with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Goods and
service tax (‘GST’), Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax and any
other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of

Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of custom, Duty-of excise, GST and Value added tax
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has neither taken any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions or government nor issued any debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) and
term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act..

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

A
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Minda Storage
Batteries Private Limited (“Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in our report of even date)
Page 3 of 3

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of its shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Aohauah

Ankush Goel
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 ICAT UDIN: 21505121AAAABA6878
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Minda Storage
Batteries Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid (inancial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date

Page 1 of 2
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Minda Storage
Batteries Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

A
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Minda Storage
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date
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Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Anbash Aia

Ankush Goel
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 ICAI UDIN: 21505121AAAABAG6878



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
CIN ; U35900DL2011PTC228383

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use-assets

Other intangible assets

Financial assets

(i) Loans

(i) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (nct)
Non current tax assets (net)
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Fiancial asscts
(i) Trade receivables
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
(iiiy Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
{v) Other financial asscts
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Government grants
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(1) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Other cuirent liabilities
Provisions
Governiment grants
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Ankash Goel

Partner
Membership No.: 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021

As at

As at

Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
4a 95474 10,313.1
4a 88 9
4b 151.0 153.0
4c 59 1.3
5 386 272
6 42 1R8OS
7 - 2
8 10.1 537

9,766.0 10,757.9
9 1.5:48 1,582 1
10 1,76i.8 1,156.8

1A 77 1128
1B 176.3 -
12 11.0 9.1
15 90 4 641
14 250.8 1157

3,882.4 3,020.6
13,648.4 13.778.5
15A 18,860.0 18,860.0
15B (7,594.5) (7,404.7)
11,265.5 11,455.3
16 2696 160.7
17 7183 783.6
947.9 9443
18 = 1448
19
289 95.7
1,093.9 820.6
20 38.9 439
21 107.0 71.6
22 61.0 137.0
17 653 65.3
1,395.0 1,378.9
13,648.4 13,778.5
3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ta Storage Batteries Private Limj

rijit Dutta
Director

DIN 00101378

Rfjesh Tiwari
Company secretary
Membership No : 30566

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

0. 03364405

Sanjeev Kumar Shah
Chief Financial Officer



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization/ impairment

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax

Total comprehensive income
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in %) (Face value of T 10 per share)

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

fobush badd

Ankush Goel
Parmer
Membership No. : 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
23 11,6264 8,980.3
24 384 122.2
11,664.8 9,102.5
25 8,997.5 5,849.2
26 (339.4) 539.0
27 925.1 1,372.3
28 20.0 136.3
29 831.9 850.1
30 1,427.8 1.786.9
11,862.9 10,333.8
(198.10) (1,431.30)
(198.10) (1,431.30)
34 830 (24.50)
8.30 (24.50)
(189.8) (1,455.8)
31 .10 (0.76)
3
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Minda Storage Batteries Private Limjted
cAain
irector r
DIN N¢_ H01(1378 . 03364405
S
sh Tiwari Sanjeev Kumar Shah
Company secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. : 30566

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

A. Cash flows from operating activities :

Loss before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation/ impairment

Finance costs

Interest income on fixed deposits

Interest income on government grants

Interest income on loans

Exchange (gain)/ loss on foreign currency fluctuations (net)

Property, plant and equipment scrapped/ written off’

Liabilities written back

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in loans
Decrease in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) other financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets
(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities
Decrease in other financial liabilities
(Decrease)/ increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income tax (paid) / refund
Net cash used in operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows form investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from/ (granted) loan to related parties
Interest received on fixed deposits

Interest received on loan to related parties

Net cash from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in borrowings
Interest paid on borrowings
Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at opening
Cash and cash equivalents as at closing

Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(198.1) (1.431.3)

8319 850.1
20.0 1363
(19.2) (18.3)
(65.3) (65.3)
- 92.7)
(52) (1.5

= 10

122 -

576.3 627.7)
33 5.8
67.3 2729
(621.0) 1,114.5
9.8) 2.0
(134.6) 149.9
195.0 (287.5)
35.4 (8.9)
(5.0) (508.8)
412 (190.4)
1415 (78.2)
43.6 (11.0)
185.1 (89.2)
(58.8) (242.1)
0.3 29.6

- 1,542.6

2.7 44

N 92 7
(55.8) 1,427.2
(144.8) (1,139.7)
(20.0) (136.3)
(164.8) (1,276.0)
(35.5) 62.0
112.8 50.8
71.3 112.8
77.1 112.4
0.2 0.4
71.3 112.8

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, as specified under the section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

Ankush Goel
Partner

Membership No. : 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021

Company secretary
Membership No. : 30566

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mfnda Storage Batteries Private Limited

-

DIN o, 00101378

Sanjeev Kumar Shah
Chief Financial Qffi¢



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

a) Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 18,860
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 =
Balance as at the 31 March 2020 18,860
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 18,860
b) Other equity
Amount
As at 1 Aprif 2019 (5,948.9)
Profit/(loss) for the year (1,431.3)
(24.5)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
As at 31 March 2020 (7,404.7)

Profit/(loss) for the year (198.1)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 8.3
Total comprehensive income (189.8)
As at 31 March 2021 (7,594.5)
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Minda Storage Batteries Private Limifed
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Ankush Goel r\rimﬂtla/
Partner Director
Membership No. : 505121 DIN No. 00101378
S~ i
Rajesh Tiwari Sanjeev Kumar Shah
Company secretary Chief Financial Office
Membership No. : 30566
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram

Date: 10 June 2021 Date: 10 June 2021



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in 3 lakhs, unless otherwise stuted

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

1.

9

/s

Corporate information

Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited is a private limited company and it is a 100% subsidiary of Minda
Industries Limited with effect from 23 September 2016. The Company is into the business of manufacturing
lead acid storage batteries for automotive and industrial application.

Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the "Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Financial Statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 10 June 2021.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs and one decimal thereof, unless
otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

() Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Eﬁfgg‘t‘ion:al“e of defined  benefit

(b) Other financial assets and liabilities Amortized cost

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation
for each affected line item in the financial statements.

A




Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al ainounts in & lakhs. unless othervise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
Judgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 7

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

- Estimated useful life of other intangible assets — Note 4c

The Company amortizes intangible assets on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the
assets. The useful life is estimated based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the assets. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least
annually.

- Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment — Note 4a

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives of the assets except certain plant and equipment on which depreciation is provided on
written down value basis. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived based on an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The
life is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed
at least annually.

- Impairment assessment of property plant and equipment- Note 4

The Company periodically reviews the impairment indicators and assesses whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. In assessing recoverable amount, the Company has used
independent valuer to determine fair value of the assets and then compared it with the carrying
value of the fixed assets. The estimation of fair value involves significant judgements and
estimates.

- Recognition and measurement of provisions— Note 36

Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under
warranty at the end of the reporting period. These claims are expected to be settled in the next
financial periods. Management estimate the provision based on historical warranty claim
information and any recent trends that may suggest future claims could differ from historical
amounts.

A
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
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2. Basis of preparation (continued)

Judgements (continuad)

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 34

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and Jthe present value of the defined
benefit obligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may ditfer from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate: future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors. including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

E. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification. The Company as presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-
current liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule I1[, Division [l of Companies Act,
2013 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for  at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Neferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

i3
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
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3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
financial statements.

A. Foreign currency transactions

i. Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
are generally recognized in profit or loss.

ii. Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange dillerences on restatement/settlement of all monetary items are recognised in prolit or foss.

B. Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosure required measurement of fair values, for
Both financial and non- financial asset and liabilities.

Fair value is categorised in to different levels in a fair value of hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows -:

- Level 1: quoted price (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asscts or liability that arc not bascd on obscrvablc markct data
(unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control frame work with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This include a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including level 3 fair values, and reports directly to chief financial officer.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. [f third
party information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuation meet the requirement of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an assets or a liability, the Company use the observable market data
as far as possible. If the input used to measure the fair value of an assets or a liability fall intoa
different level of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement categorized in its
entirety in the same level of fair value of hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the respective notas.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

C.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

a. Amortised cost:- These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss
or derecognition is are recognized in profit or loss.

b. FVTPL:- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amonrns in & lakhs, unless otleinvise stared)
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iii.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
assets at | losses. including any interest or dividend income. are recognized in
FVTPL profit or loss.

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
assets at| effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment

amortized cost | losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or [oss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when. and only when. the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

i



Mind

a Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in & lakhs, uniess othervise stateds

CIN :

iv.

U35900DL2011PTC228383
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109.
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cost of
construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are attributable to

construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

ii.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided as per straight-line method basis, as
per useful life of the assets estimated by the management, which is equal to the useful life prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of certain plant and equipment,
depreciation on which is provided as per the written down value method basis and the life is based on
technical evaluation and assessment.

Leasehold land is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of lease or their useful lives, whichever
is shorter.

Ko
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Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date on which
asset is ready for use/ (disposed of). Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment. the management believes
that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects
to use these assets.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried
at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Management estimate of | Companies Act useful
useful life (years) life (years)
Buildings 15/30 30
Plant and equipment 2/3/5/6/7/8/9/10/15/21 15
Furniture and fixtures - 5/8/9/10 10
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment | 5 5
Computers 3 3

E. Goodwill and other intangible assets

i. Goodwill
For measurement of goodwill that arises on a business combination measured at fair value. Any
goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Subsequent measurement is at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, other intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method, and is included in amortization expense in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
- Software 6 years

Amortization method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate. '
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F. Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

» it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization; or
* The disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difticulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except
for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

. Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured

as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

i
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Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. [f any indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units
(CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds (including exchange
differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs).
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For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualitfving asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specitically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized
during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
H. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Determining whether a contract contains lease

At inception of a contract, the Company determines whether the contract is. or contains, a lease. The
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
or assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in a contract.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Company separates payments and other consideration required by
the contract into those for each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone price and
those for non-lease components on the basis of their relative aggregate stand-alone price. If the
Company concludes that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then ROU asset and Lease
liability are recognised at an amount equal to the present value of future lease payments; subsequently
the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised
using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Company as a lessee

At inception, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease. This assessment involves
the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on an identified asset, whether the Company obtains
substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, and whether the Company has the
right to direct the use of that asset.

The Company has elected to separate lease and non-lease components of contracts, wherever possible.
The Company recognizes a right of use (ROU) asset and a lease liability at the transition date/ lease
commencement date. The ROU is initially measured based on the present value of future lease
payments, plus initial direct costs, and cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any incentives received. The ROU is depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The ROU is subject to testing for impairment if there is
an indicator for impairment.
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At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the future
lease payments that are not yet paid at that date discounted using interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases where the total lease
term is less than or equal to 12 months, or for leases of [ow value assets. The payments for such leases
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with the general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increase. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of underlying asset is transferred from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees
under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Transition to IND AS 116

This standard replaces Ind AS 17 and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. The main effect on the Company is that Ind AS 116 introduces a
single lease accounting model for lessees and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for
almost all leases and therefore resulted in an increase of ROU asset and total financial liability at 1
April 2019. This standard is mandatory for the accounting period beginning on 1 April 2019. The
Company adopted it on 1 April 2019 under the modified retrospective approach, utilizing the practical
expedient to not reassess whether a contract contains a lease. Accordingly, the Company has not
restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has
been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

The Company has elected for recognition exemption for short term leases and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value.



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
(Al amowunts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U33900DL2011PTC228383

(i)
(iii)

Inventories

Inventorics which comprise raw materials. work-in-progress, finished goods and stores and spares are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable), costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -
Raw materials, stores and spares - Weighted average cost
Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus

appropriate share of labour,
manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products
are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated
that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and
net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of storage batteries and allied products.

(i) Sale of goods:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Sales are recognized
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of
contract and are recognized. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates,
taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

Duty drawback and export incentives- Income from duty drawback and export incentives is recognized
on an accrual basis.

A
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al comounts in Z lukhs, unless othervise stared)

CIN : U33900DL2011PTC228383

K. Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employec bencfit obligations arc measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under
short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The employees of the Company are entitled to Minda Industries Limited (holding Company) Employee
Stock option scheme 2019. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the holding
Company using the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.
That cost is recognised, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfiiled
in employee benefits expense. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number
of'awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such
that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the
related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. The holding Company recharges
the cost on regular basis to the Company on regular basis.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund (EPF), Employee Pension
scheme (EPS) and Employees’ State Insurance to Government administered fund which is a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

(iv) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation is
present value of the defined benefit obligation for the eligible employees at the end of the reporting
period. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost” or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement
of'a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. '

M
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Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless othervise stated)

CIN : U33900DL2011PTC228383

(v) Other long term employee benefits

@)

Compcensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since, the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating revenue.

. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as finance cost.

(ii) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc.
are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In cases where the
amount of the tax deduction (or estimated future tax deduction) exceeds the amount of the ESOP related
cumulative remuneration expense, the excess of the associated current or deferred tax are recognised
directly in equity.

Ko
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(Al amounts in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
return with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the company recognizes a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred
tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized / reduced to the extent that
it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authorities.

Minimum Alternative tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as
current tax in profit or loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognized
as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company
will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for
set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer
exists.

Ay
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amownts in T lakhs, unless othervise stuated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

0.

Earnings per share

Basic carnings per sharc are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity
equivalent shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in
the period in which the change occurs.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of Financial Statements
Standards issued but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.

M
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Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

4b. Right-of-use-assets (Refer 4a)

Carrying amount of:

As at
31 March 2021

Right of use (leasehold land) 151.00
151.00
Particulars Right of use (leasehold
land)
Cost
As at 1 April 2019 -
Adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 155.0
Additions -
Disposal / derecognized during the year
Balance at 31 March 2020 155.0
Additions -
Disposal / derecognized during the year
Balance at 31 March 2021 155.0
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2019
Depreciation expense 2.0
Disposal / derecognized during the year =
Balance at 31 March 2020 2.0
Depreciation expense 2.0
Disposal / derecognized during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2021 4.0
Balance at 31 March 2020 153.0
Balance at 31 March 2021 151.0
4c. Other intangible assets
Particulars Software
Balance at 1 April 2019 16.4
Additions 35
Deductions/ Adjustments 0.1
Balance at 31 March 2020 19.8
Additions -
Deductions/ Adjustments -
Balance at 31 March 2021 19.8
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 31 March 2019 3.7
Amortisation for the year 4.9
Disposals 0.1
Balance at 31 March 2020 8.5
Amortisation for the year 54
Disposals -
Balance at 31 March 2021 13.9
Carrying amount (net)
At 31 March 2020 1.3
5.9

At 31 March 2021 P«‘
-



Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

4d. Goodwill

Balance at 31 March 2019
Additions

As at
31 March 2021

549.5

Balance at 31 March 2020

Additions

Balance at 31 March 2021

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 31 March 2019
Amortisation/ impairment for the year

Balance at 31 March 2020

Amortisation/ impairment for the year

Balance at 31 March 2021

Carrying amount (net)
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2021




Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(A amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
CIN: L33900D1L.201T1PTC228383
As at
31 March 2021

\s at
31 March 2020

S Loans
finseenred considerad good unless othenvise stared
Securily deposits 38.0 37.2
33.60 37.2
6  Other financial assets
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months trom the reporting date)* 42 180.3
42 180.5

= Bank deposits includes Rs. 4 2 lakhs (31 March 2020 : Rs. 176.3 lakhs) being fixed deposits pledged with various government authoritics

<This space is intentionally left blank >
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Minda Storage Bartteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : L33900DL.201TPTC228383

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

8 Non current tux assets (net)
Advance tax 10 1 537
10.1 33.7
9 Inventories®
(Ialued at lower of cost or net realisable yalue)
Raw materials 5077 920 3
Work-in-progress 870 1 5157
Finished goods 808 978
Stores and sparcs 562 503
1.514.8 1.582.1

10 Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good unless othernvise stated)
Unsecured considered good
-From related parties 9502 6128
-From other than related parties 811.6 5240
1,761.8 1,136.8
a) Trade receivable includes amount due from companies having common directors as follows:
Minda Industries Limited 9502 6128
b) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note no 37
c) The Company believes that no loss allowance is required against the debtors
11A Cash and cash equivalents
- Balances with banks
On current accounts 77.1 1124
- Cash on hand 02 04
71.3 112.8
The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not been made in these
(inancial staterents since the requitemnent dues nol pettain Lo financial year ended 31 March 2021,
11B Bank balances other than those included in cash and cash equivalents above
- Balances with banks
Bank deposits (due for realisation within 12 months of the reporting date)* 176 3
176.3 -
* Represents fixed deposits pledged with various government authorities (refer note no 6)
12 Loans
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loan to employees 11.0 91
11.0 9.1
13 Other financial assets
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 799 634
Export benefit receivable 105 07
90.4 64.1
14 Other current assets
(unsecired considered good unless othenvise stated)
Prepaid expenses 200 236
Advance to suppliers 1072 395
Balances with govemnment authorities 285 339
Insurance claim receivable* 04 9 18 4
Others 02 03
250.8 113.7

*Carrying amount of inventories (shown above) pledged as securities for borrowings to the extent of borrowing limits (refer note 18)

The write down of imventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to Rs. 110 4 lacs (As at 31 March 2020: 45 4 lacs) The write down is
included in cost of material consumed or changes in inventories ol finished goods and work-in-progress

“During the current year. the Company has rased cham with

Imsurance company with respeet o geods damaged i iz

Ay
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Equity share capital
Authorised

Equity shates ol 210 - cach (previous year 10 - each)

Equity share capital
Equity shares of 10 - each (previous vear T10 - each)

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Number Amount Number Amount
190.000,000 19.000.0 190,000,000 19.000.0
191100, D 19,000.0 190,000,000 19.,1110.0

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity shares
Opening balance
Closing balance

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

Number Amount Number Amount
138.600.000 18.860 0 188.600,000 18.860 0
188,600,000 18,860.0 188,600,000 18,860.0

Number Amount Number Amount
188,600,000 18,860.0 138.600.000 18.860.0
188,600,000 18,860.0 188.600.000 18,860.0

The Company has only one class of cquity shares having a par value of Z 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share The Company may
declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors. if any. is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing

Annual General Meeting

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Minda Industries Limited (including six nominee shareholders)

Also refer note 39 of the financial statements,

Other equity

Retained earning

Balance at the beginning of the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 34)
Compensated absences

Others
Provision for warranty*

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Number of % holding in that Number of 26 holding in that

shares held class of shares shares held class of shares
188,600,000 100%% 188.600.000 100%
As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

(7,404.7) (5.948.9)
(198.1) (1.431.3)
83 (24.5)
(7,594.5) (7,404.7)
125.8 1057
4538 309
171.6 136.6
98.0 24.1
269.6 160.7

* The Company has made a warranty provision on account of sale of products with warranty clause. These provisions are based on management’s best estimate and past
trends. Actual expenses for warranty are charged directly against the provision. Un-utilised provision is reversed on expiry of the warranty period (refer note 36)

Government grants

Export promotion capital grant scheme (refer note 32a)
Current portion

Non current portion

Opening balance
Less: Released to profit or loss
Closing balance

653 653
7183 783.6
783.6 848.9
8489 9142

653 633
783.6 848.9
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As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

18 Short-term borrowings
Secured cash credit from banks - 144 8
- 144.8
a. Terms repayment schedule and security
Nature of security Terms of repayment and rate of interest
\xis Bank
Rupee Fﬂsh credit from banks amounting to Nil (31 March 2020: ¥ 144 § Floating @ MCLR rate plus 75 bps carties 8 15% (previous year 9.30%)
Lakhs) is secured by:
Primary:- First pari passu charge on entire current assets of the Company
both present and future.
Secondary:- Second Pari Passu charge on entire movable property plant und
equipment of the Company, both present and future
Bal as at the beginning of the year 144.8 1,2845
Repayments of current borrowing (net) (144 8) (1,139.7)
Balance as at the end of the year - 144.8
Net debt reconciliation
Borrowings - 144 8
Finance costs 20.0 1363
Finance cost paid (20.0) (136.3)
Cash and cash equivalents (77.3) (112.8)
Net Debt/ (cash and cash equivalent) (77.3) 32.0
19 Trade payables
Trade payables (refer note 35)
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 289 95.7
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,093.9 820.6
1,122.8 916.3
a) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables are disclosed in note no 37.
20 Other financial liabilities
Payable to employees 36.0 29.8
Security deposits from customers 29 14.1
38.9 43.9
21 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 282 579
Statutory dues 78.8 13.7
107.0 71.6
22 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 34) 20 15
Compensated absences 12.1 22.8
14.1 243
Others
Provision for warranty (refer note 16) 46.9 112.7
46.9 12.7
61.0 137.0

- This space is intentionally lefi blank -
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23 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Finished voods

Other operating revenues
Scrap sales

Export benetits
Government grants

24 Other income

Interest income on
Fixed Deposit
Income Tax Refund
Interest income on loans
Net gain on foreign currency Huctuations
Liabilitics written back
Miscellancous income

25 Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock of raw materials (a)
Purchases (b)

Closing stock of raw materials (¢ )

Total (a+b-¢)

26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Net increase/(decrease) in stocks

27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Expense on employee stock option schemes (refer note 41)
Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expense

28 Finance costs

[nterest on borrowings
Bank charges

[nterest on amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers

This space ts intentionall fefr hlank

o

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

114949 8.863.2
9.0 1.2
37.2 30.6
63.3 633
11,626.4 8,980.3
19.2 18.3
6.1 -
927
- 1.1
122 -
0.9 0.
38.4 122.2
8,997.5
920.3 643.3
8,584.9 4,285.6
507.7 920.3
8.997.5 5,849.2
870.1 513.7
80.8 97.8
950.9 611.5
513.7 8743
97.8 276.2
611.5 1,150.5
(339.4) 539.0
821.6 1,221.2
22 3.1
52.8 783
48.5 69.7
925.1 1,372.3
7.0 122.7
I1.9 12.9
1.1 0.7
20.0 136.3




Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN : U35900DL2011PTC228383

29 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets

30 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional

Payments to auditors*

Freight

Warranty (net)

Net loss on foreign currency fluctuations
Management and administrative expenses
SAP license fee

Sales promotion

Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

824.5 8432
54 49
2.0 2.0

831.9 850.1

150.9 162.7

4778 394.9
- 434

108.2 144.1

352 178.2
22.1 574
183 19.8
165.0 3103
3503 193.6
12.5 :
- 10.3
16.1 572
- 249
714 190.1
1.427.8 1,786.9

As the Company is into losses, therefore no Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount is required to be spent as per the requirements of

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note:
* Payments to the auditors (excluding goods and service tax)
Statutory audit
Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

31 Earnings per share

Net loss after tax as per Statement of Profit and loss
Net loss attributable to equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares (in Nos.):
for Basic EPS
for Diluted EPS
Basic earnings per share in rupees
Diluted earnings per share in rupees

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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15.0 15.0
3.0 3.0

03 1.8

18.3 19.8

(198.1) (1,431.3)
(198.1) (1431.3)
188,600,000 188,600,000
188,600,000 188,600,000
(0.11) (0.76)
(0.11) (0.76)
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32 {u) Contingent liabilities

part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Company had imported capital 2oods under EPCG (Export Promotion Capital Goods) Scheme and saved custom duty to the tune of T 9795 lakhs until 2013-16
As per the EPCG terms and conditions, the Company needs to export goods 6 times of duty saved on import of’ Capital goods on FOB basis within a period of 6 years
(Block vear Tst to 4th - 30 and 3th to 6th - 50°). Az at 31 March 2021, the Company has fulfilled 100%0 ofits export obligation amounting to T 5.9877 lakhs (31
March 2020 - 23939 9 lakhs ). Accordingly company is of the view that the required export obligation has been achieved as per the timelines and hence no provision

is considerad necessary

There arc no litizations outstanding as at 31 March 2021 (Previous Rs. Nil )

32 (b) Capital and other commitments

There are no capital and other commitments outstanding as at 31 March 2021 (previous year : Nil)

33 Segment information
Operating segments

a. Basis for segmentation

The Chiel operating decision maker (CODMI) examines the Company's performance from a product business perspective and has identified “Storage batteries and
ailied products as a single operating segment. Accordingly. no disclosures are made for operating segments as per Ind AS 108 in the financial statements

b. Geographical information

The geographical information analyses the Company's revenucs and non-current asscts by the Company's country of domicile (1 ¢ India) and outside India In
qeog 3 pany S A 3
presenting the geographical information. scgment revenue has been based on the geographical location of customers and segment assets which have been based on the

geographical location of the assets

(i) Revenues

India
Outside India

(ii) Non-current assets #

India
Outside India
Total

# Non-current assets excludes financial assets,
(iii) Trade receivable

India

Outside [ndia

Total

c. Major customer

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

9.260.8 7.900.3

23656 1,080.0

11,626.4 8,980.3
As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

9.7232 10,3402
9,723.2 10,540.2
1,180.7 971.7

581.1 165.1
1.761.8 1,136.8

Revenue from one customers of the Company are more than 57% (31 March 2020 revenue from two customers more than 34%) of the Company's total revenue.

34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”
a) Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

Non-current
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Current

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences
Total employee benefit liabilities

Total

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity :

1258 105.7
458 309
171.6 136.6
20 15
12.1 228
14.1 243
185.7 160.9

Salary for calculation of pratuity

Last drawn salary

Normal Retirement Age

58 Years

Vesting Period

5 Years

Benefit on normal retirement

As per the provisious of the Pavment of Gratuity Act. 1972

Benefit on early retirement / tenmination / resignation/ withdrawal

Same as normal retirement benefit based on the service upto the date of exit

Benefit on death in serviee

Same as normal retirement benefit and vo vesting period conditions applics

Maximum limt

Rs 20.00.000

Graunty Formula

1320 ¢ Last diavn sadan * Number of completed sears

As
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34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 on “*Employce Benefits” (continued)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. governed by the payment of gratity act The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retivement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of seiviee

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assnmptions and other regnlatory framework which may vany over time The above defined benetit
plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Interest rate risk :

The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on gosemment bonds, If bond yields (all. there shall be an increase in ultimate cost of providing
the above bencfit and thus, the defined benefit oblization will tend to increase

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-tenm vratuity payouts This may arise due to non availability of enough cash ‘cash equivalent to mect the
liabilitics or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time

Inherent risk

The plan is defined bencfit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan In particular, this exposes the
Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience This may result in an increase in cost of providing thesc benefits to
employees in futwie Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any fongevity risks

Salary inflation risk

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation
Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic naturc of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement The effect of these
decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting ecriteria. It is
important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short carcer employee typically costs less per year as compared to a
long service ernployee

Regulatory risk:

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payments of Gratuity Act,1972(as amended from time to time). There is risk of change in
regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (Maximum limit: Rs. 20,00,000 )

Gratuity

(i) Changes in present value of obligation;

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 1072 1425
[nterest cost 74 1.1
Current service cost 212 203
Benefits paid .1 (1.7
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 83) 245
Transfer in/(out) liability 0.4 (79.5)
Present value of obligation as at the end of year 127.8 107.2
- Long term 1258 105.7
- Short term 20 15

(ii) The amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1278 107.2

Net (asset)/liability recognized in balance sheet 127.8 107.2

(iii) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 212 203
Interest cost 74 111
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 28.6 314
(iv) Re-measurements recognised in other Comprehensive Income (OCl):
Changes in Financial Assumption 10 133
Experience Adjustiments 93 112
Amount recognized in other Comprehensive (Income) loss (OCD) (8.3) 24.5
(v) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Within next 12 Mounths 20 15
Between 2 and 3 vears 12 O3
Between € and 10 sews 19 320
Nore than 10 vems RERE RIS

Asal 31 NMarel 2021 the weighted arerage dutatron or the delined benelit obligation was 1o vear< o 31 NMareh 2020 Lo sy

A
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34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 on *Employee Benefits” (continued)
(vi) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date ave as follows:
a) Economic assumptions:

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary erowth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds ar
the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary erowth rate taking account of inflation. seniotity. promotion and other relevant [actors
on long term basis

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 6.80% 6 83%,
Future salany increase $00°% 800%
b) Demographic assumptions:
i Ratirament Ace (Years) 58 58
i) Mortality Tnble 100°0 1000,
1) Apes
Uit 3 veinrs 3.00% 300%
Frosm 31010 44 veurs 2.00%% 2.00°%
Abiye 4 vears 100% 1.00°%

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments, It is based on yields/ rates available on applicable bonds as on the
current valuation date. The salary growth rate as indicated above is Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years determined
considering the general trend in inflation, promotions, seniority, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in employment market, etc
Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of Employee Tumover in future( other than on account of retirement, death or disablement)
determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM) (2006-2008) rates
(vii) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the asswnptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Increase/(Decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1%) 110.0 1497 924 1252
Salary escalation rate (1%) 1485 1105 124.8 925
Attrition rate (50%) 125.6 1303 [052 109.3
Mortality rate (10%) 1277 1279 1071 1072

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely that the change in
assumption to occur in isolation, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation and the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, past
service cost calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet, It should be noted that valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of the plan, only timing of when the benefit cost are recognised The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Asset Liability Matching Strategies
Gratuity is unfunded plan.

(viii) Enterprise best estimate of contribution during the next year
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gratuity » .

(¢) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contribution towards employees' provident fund, employees' state insurance plan scheme, pension fund and superannuation fund Under the
schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroil cost. as specified in the rules of the scheme. to these defined contribution schemes
The Cunpany has tecoguised 32 8 lukhs (31 Mareh 2020 78 3 Lakhs) duting the year as expense towards coutiibution to these plans

Provident tund 2398 433
Employees’ state inswanee scheme 3l 73
Pension Fund (RN R
Superannuaten fund 2 Ty

Total o1y 78,3
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35 Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Based on the information available with the Company, the disclosures required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 is as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the vear
- Principal 289 95.7
- Interest 18
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Mediwm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 . )
(MSMED Act 2006)
The Amounts of the payments made to micro and smail suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year 1332 -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
18 07

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act 2006

36 Provision
(i) Warranty

The following disclosures have been made in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 - ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance as at beginning of the year 136.8 231.2
Add: Provision made during the year 350.3 193.6
Less: Utilized during the year 342.2 287.9
Balance as at the end of the year 144.9 136.8
Non current 980 241
Current 469 127

~This spuce is intentivnully left blunk
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37 Financial risk management objectives

The Company. as an active supplier for the automobile industr expose its business and products to various market risks. credit risk and liquidity risk The Company s
decentralised management structure with the main activities in the plant make necessary organised risk management system  The regulations  instructions,
implementation rules and in particular. the regular communication throughout the controlied management process consisting of planning. controlling and monitoring
collectively form the risk management system used to deline. record and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks Below notes explain the sources of risks in
which the Company is exposed to and how it manages the risks:

a) Market risk

Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk. interest rate risk and other price risks The sensitivity analyses in the tollowing sections relate to the
position as at Balance sheet date The analyses exclude the impact of mosements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations: provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilitics

(i) Price risk

Fluctuation in commodity price affects dircetly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the company in it various products. Substantial
pricing pressure from major afier market customers to provide price cuts and inability to pass on the increased cost to customers may also affect the profitabilits of the
Company

(ii) Foreign curreney risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company s
exposure to the risk of changes in forcign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activitics (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency )

The Company transacts business in local currency as well as in foreign currency  The Company has foreign currency trade payables and trade receivables and is
therefore, exposed to forcign exchange risk

Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Foreign Exchange rate T in lakhs Foreign Exchange rate X in lakhs

Currency currency (in) currency (in¥%)

amount in amount in

lakhs lakhs

Trade receivables
USD 6.0 735 4429 19 754 1419
Trade payables
uUSD 04 735 288 0.5 754 379
Advances to vendor
USD 0.2 735 2.7 - 75.4 -

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
company profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities :-

Exposure gain/(loss)

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Change +1% Change -1% Change +1% Change -1%
Trade receivables
UsD 44 44 1.4 14
Trade payables
usD 0.3) 03 (0.4) 0.4
Advances to vendor
ush 0.1 o1 - -

This space is intentionally left blunk
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(iii) a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of'a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates: The Company 's main
interest rate risk arises from borrowmgs with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash low interest rate 1isk

The exposure of the Company s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Asat As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

\ ariable rate borrowines - 144 8
Total - 1.8

For floating rate liabilities. the analvsis is prepared assuming the amount of the Tiability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding (o1 the whole year

Impact on profit before tax

Increase by 0 5% - t07)
Decrease by 0 5% - 07
Variable interest borrowings includes loan from banks which carry interest rate is 8 73% previous vear

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and [uture cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses The Company's
objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1-3 Years More than 5 Years Total

As at 31 March 2021

Trade payable - 1.122.8 - - - 1,1228
Other financial liabilities - 389 - - - 389
As at 31 March 2020

Interest bearing borrowings 144 8 . = < - 144 8
Trade payable - 916.3 - 916.3
Other financial liabilities - 439 - - - 439

The undrawn borrowing facilities as per the banking arrangements amounts to Rs. 1000.0 lakhs as at 31 March 2021. (previous year: Rs. 1671.7 lakhs)

c) Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments

(i) Trade receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customers. However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and customer profile

The Customers are subjected to credit assessments as a precautionary measure, and the adherence of all clients to payment due dates is monitored on an on-going basis, thereby
practically reducing the risk of default.

The Company's review also includes financial statements, industry information, customer background etc.

Expected credit loss on trade receivable :

The Company's expected probability of default is not significant and all major payments are received on due dates without ant significant delays Based on internal assessment
which is driven by historical experience / current facts available in relation to default in collection thereof, the expected credit loss for trade receivables is estimated to be not
material,

The table below summarises the ageing bracket of trade receivables.

Particulars Gross carrying amount
As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current (not past due) 14873 790.8
1-30 days past due 152.7 856
31-60 days past due 03 65.7
61-90 days past due 0.1 526
91-120 days past due - 58
121-360 days past due 375 1363
More than 365 days 640 -
Total 1,761.8 1,136.8

(ii) Others
Ciedit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in accordance with the Company's policy [nvestments of surplus funds are made in
bank deposits and other risk free securities All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit nisk due to goed credit ratings assigned to these banks and no
historical issues noted in these a

angements

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

Credit sk on cashrand cash eque alents s houted as the compamy generally insests modepesits with banks wath high repute
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38 Related Party Disclosure

Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:-

Nature of relationship Name of related party

Holding Company Minda Industries Limited

(a) Related parties with whom transactions hay ¢ taken place during the year’ previous year and the nature of related panty relationship:

Nature of relationship Name of related party

Fellow Subsidiaries M1 Torica India Private Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries Mindarika Puivate Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries MITIL Polvmers Private Limited
Enterprises in which directors'members of the Company can exercise significant influence S M Aulo Engincering Pvt Ltd

Minda Onkyvo India Private Limited

A firm, in which a director, manager or his relative is a partnel Minda Industries (Finm)
Kes management personnel Satish Sekhri
Sudhir fain

Paridhi Minda

Sanjay Jain

Arijit Dutta (From 01 November 2020)
(b) Details of related parties with whom transactions have taken place

Name of the related party Nature of transaction For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31
March 2021 March 2020
Transactions during the year
Minda Industries Limited* Other expenses 140 8 1659
Interest income on loans - 927
Transfer of Loan to Employee - 95
Loan repaid - 1,525 0
Sale of products 6,5749 2,5019
Services received 133 -
Sale of property, plant and equipment 03 295
Employee liability transferred - 916
MI Torica [ndia Private Limited Purchases - 678
MITIL Polymers Private Limited Purchases 2419 2086
Minda Industries (Firm) Rent Paid - 6.7
Name of the related party Nature of transaction As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance as at year end
Minda Industries Limited Trade payables 17.6 27.6
Trade receivables 9502 6128
MITIL Polymers Private Limited Trade payables 533 163

(c) Key managerial personnel compensation

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2021 March 2020

Directors sitting fee 22 27

Managerial remuneration 380

Expense on employee stock option schemes 22

Total compensation 42.4 5.8

* Under the scheme of amalgamation, Minda Distribution and Services Limited and M J Casting Limited have been merged in Minda Industries Limited. Accordingly
previous year figures has been reclassified in related party disclosure

The Company has received letter of support from its Holding Company, Minda [ndustries Limited for providing financial support

This space s piennenall defr dlanh
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39 Capital management

The Company “s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern. so that they can continue to provide

returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders. and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

Consistent with others in the industry. the Company monitors Net Debt to EBITDA ratio i ¢ Net debt (total borrowings nct of cash and cash
cquivalents) divided by EBITDA (Profit betore tax plus depreciation and amortization expense plus finance costs). The Company s strategy is to
ensure that the Net Debt to EBITDA is managed at an optimal level considering the above factors, The Net Debt to EBITDA ratios were as

follows:

Net Debt
EBITDA
Net Debt to EBITDA

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

(77.3) 320
33 (444.9)
(0.1) (0.1)

The Company monitors the debt covenants time to time and entered into banking agreement with bank for credit limits

40 Fair value measurcments

1. Financial instruments by category and fair values

The following table shows the carmrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

hierarchy -

Level of
hierarchy

Category

1) Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade receivables

Loans

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits

Other financial assets

Total

2) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Borrowings 3
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Amortised cost

1,761.8 1,136.8
49.6 46.4
713 112.8

180.5 180.5
90.4 64.1
2,159.6 1,540.6
- 144.8

1,122.8 916.3
389 439

1,161.7 1,105.0

1. Fair value of trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, other current financial assets, trade payables, other current

financial liabilities and borrowings approximate their carrying amount, largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

2. Fair value of all other non-current assets have not been disclosed as the change from carrying amount is inconsequential.

3. There are no financial assets and liabilities valued at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and Fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVOCI).

There are no transfer between level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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41 Share based payments

The sharcholders of the Parent Company had approved the UNO Minda Employce Stock Option Scheme - 2019 (herein referred as UNOMINDA ESOS-2019) thioush
postal ballot resolution dated March 25,2019

During the previous year, the NRC of holding company has approved and granted options to Eligible Employees of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries The plan
envisaged grant of stock options to eligible employees at market price in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employce Benetits)
Regulations. 2014

This scheme provided for conditional grant of Performance Shares at nominal value to eligible management emplosees as determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time The performance measures under this scheme include Group achieving the target market Capitalisation The maximum
number of equity shares to be allotted under the scheme are 16,380 at an exercise price of 2323~ cach. The scheme is monitored and supervised by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the holding company in compliance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 and amendments thereof from time to time

Accordingly. the expense pertaining to the Company is recharged by the parent company

The terms and conditions related to the grant of the share options are as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021
Scheme Minda Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019
Year 2019

16 May 2019
16,380 options of Equity shares of tace value of Rs. 2/~each
Achieving target market capitalization of the Group on or before 31 May 2022

Date of Grant

Number of Options granted
Vesting Condition
Exercise Period

Exercise Price (INR) per share 325/-
Fair value of the option on the date of grant (¥) per share 41.31/-

2 Year from (he date of vesting

The number of share options under stock benefit plan is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 25,740 -
Transferred during the year 9,360

Granted during the year - 25,740
Outstanding at the end of the year 16,380 25,740
Weighted average exercise price during the year (Z) per share NA NA

Fair valuation
The parent company has provided the fair valuation report done by an independent firm of valuers on the date of grant using the Binomial Model The cost is recharged
to the Company by the holding Company

The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Risk- free interest rate (%) 7.13% 7.13%
Expected life of options (years) [(year of vesting) +(contractual option term)/2] 4 years 4 years
Expected volatility (%) 41% 41%
Dividend yield 0.63% 0.63%

The risk free rate being considered for the calculation is the interest rate applicable for a maturity equal to the expected life of the options based on the zero-coupon
yield curve for Government Securities or 10 years Government bonds Volatility calculation is a measure of the amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to
fluctuate during the period. The measure volatility is used in option-pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rate of the
return of the stock over a period of time The dividend yield for the year is derived by dividing the dividend for the period with the current market price.

The above disclosure is based on the information, to the extent available with the Company

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss: 31 March 2020

~
(5]
[=]
w
—
(=)

Employee stock option expenses
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42 In view of the pandemic relating to COVID-19, the Company has considered internal and external information and has performed an analysis based on current estimates
while assessing the provision and recoverability of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, trade receivables and other current and non current assets, for any
possible impact on the Financial Statements. The Company has also assessed the impact of this whole situztion on its capital and financial resources, profitability,
liquidity position, internal financial reporting controls etc. Basis such assessment, the management believes no material adjustinents are required to be made in financial
statements, The impact of the pandemic on economic outlook remain uncertain and may be different from that estimated as at the date of board approval and the
Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions

43 The accumulated losses of the Company aggregates to Rs. 7,594.5 lakhs (Previous Rs. 7,404.7 lakhs) and the net worth of the Company is Rs 11,265.5 lakhs (Previous
year Rs. 11,4553 lakhs). Based on the past trend of growth in the business, future cash flow projections and banking arrangements, the Company considers it
appropriale to prepare the financial stalements on a going concemn basis. Additionally, the Company also has operational and financial support from the Holding
Company, if required be, to continue on a going concern basis

44 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in Seplember

2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess
the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.
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